



Tuesday, May 3, 2016

2:00 PM

City Hall - Conference Room

The Columbia City Council will conduct a Work Session on Tuesday, May, 3, 2016 at 2:00 PM at City Hall - Conference Room at 1737 Main Street, Second Floor, Columbia, SC 29201.

CALL TO ORDER

INVOCATION

CITY COUNCIL DISCUSSION

1. Administrative Policies and Procedures
2. Honorary Street Renaming Policy
3. Clean Water 2020 Program Deliverable: Wastewater Treatment Plant Training Program Update

EXECUTIVE SESSION

4. Discussion of employment of employee - SC Code 30-4-70(a)(1)
5. Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contractual arrangements - SC Code 30-4-70(a)(2)
6. Receipt of legal advice which relates to matters covered by attorney-client privilege - SC Code 30-4-70(a)(2) Hospitality Funding Guidelines

CHAPTER 2 - ADMINISTRATION

Sections previously included for context but are not being amended have been removed.
 Sections which contained multiple versions have been reduced the last recommend amendment.
 Sections will be renumbered accordingly upon approval of Council to prepare an ordinance.

Legend: Current Code in black; language to be removed in ~~strike through~~
 Previous to Committee in **RED**

Proposed in **BLUE**

ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL

Sec. 2-3. Members of council.

The mayor is considered to be a member of council.

State law reference – Council form of government, S.C. Code 1976, § 5-13-30

Secs. 2-3. Duties of council members. (MASC Version)

The council members shall attend all regular and special meetings of the city council and hold themselves at all times in readiness to perform any duty entrusted to them by the city council. The councilmembers shall perform the duties thus imposed upon them with dispatch and to the best of their abilities.

Sec. 2-4. Legislative powers; matters of policy: (MASC Version)

All legislative powers of the city and the determination of all matters of policy are vested in the city council with each member, including the mayor, having one vote.

State law reference: Powers and duties of council, S.C. Code 1976, 1 5-13-30.

Sec. 2-5. Mayor: (MASC Version)

A mayor shall be elected from the city at large in the manner provided by law. The mayor shall be recognized as head of the city government for all ceremonial purposes and by the governor for purposes of military law. He shall preside over the meetings of the city council unless otherwise provided by council, but shall have no regular administrative duties. The mayor shall attend all regular and special meetings of the city council.

Sec. 2-6. Mayor pro tempore: (MASC Version, as modified by Council on 4-19-16)

At the first council meeting in January following a general election for the council, the council shall elect one member of their body as a mayor pro tempore to serve as such for ~~two~~ **one** years, who shall act as mayor during the absence or disability of the mayor, and if a vacancy occurs, shall act as mayor until a successor is duly qualified and elected.

State law reference: Similar provisions, S.C. Code 1976, 5-7-190.

Sec. 2-7. Qualifications of mayor and council members; proceedings to vacate offices: (MASC Version)

a) The mayor and council members shall be qualified electors of the city. Except where authorized by law, neither the mayor nor any member of council shall hold any other elected position in local, state or federal government or any other municipal office or municipal employment. The mayor or any council member shall forfeit his office if he:

- 1) Lacks at any time during his term of office any qualification for the office prescribed by city ordinance or the general law and constitution of the state;
 - 2) Violates any express prohibition of S.C. Code 1976, §§ 5-1-10 through 5-17-30;
 - 3) Is convicted of a crime of moral turpitude.
- b) The council shall be the judge of the election and qualifications of its members and of the grounds for forfeiture of office as provided in S.C. Code 1976, § 5-7-210.

Sec. 2-8. Oaths of mayor and council members: (MASC Version, as modified by Council on 4-19-16)

The mayor and council members before entering upon the duties of their respective offices shall take the following oaths:

CHAPTER 2 - ADMINISTRATION

Sections previously included for context but are not being amended have been removed.
 Sections which contained multiple versions have been reduced the last recommend amendment.
 Sections will be renumbered accordingly upon approval of Council to prepare an ordinance.

Legend: Current Code in black; language to be removed in ~~strike through~~

Previous to Committee in **RED**

Proposed in **BLUE**

"I do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I am duly qualified, according to the constitution of this state, to exercise the duties of the office to which I have been elected and that I will, to the best of my ability, discharge the duties thereof and preserve, protect and defend the constitution of this state and of the United States.

"As mayor (or council member) of the City of Columbia, I will equally, fairly and impartially, to the best of my ability and skill, exercise the trust reposed in me, and will use my best endeavor to preserve the peace and carry into effect according to law the purposes for which I have been elected. So help me God."

The ~~date of the~~ oath of office **shall be administered** and the effective date of service shall be ~~prescribed by city ordinance~~ **the first council meeting in January.**

State law reference: Similar provisions, S.C. Code 1976, § 5-15-150.

Sec. 2-9. Compensation: (MASC Version)

a) The council shall determine the annual salary of the mayor and council members by ordinance; provided, that an ordinance establishing or increasing such salaries shall not become effective until the commencement date of the terms of two or more members elected at the next general election following the adoption of the ordinance, at which time it will become effective for all members whether or not they were elected in such election.

b) The ~~mayor and~~ council members shall also be reimbursed for their actual expenses incurred in the performance of their official duties upon submission of signed expense reimbursement forms as provided by the city finance department, subject to the availability of funds budgeted for council expense. Council shall no longer rollover their expense accounts; any remaining balances at the end of the fiscal year will be allocated for council leadership travel. **This subsection will replace current §2-32.**

State law reference: Salaries and expenses of mayor and council members determined by council through ordinance, S.C. Code 1976, § 5-7-170.

Secs. 2-10—2-30. Reserved.

CHAPTER 2 - ADMINISTRATION

Sections previously included for context but are not being amended have been removed.
 Sections which contained multiple versions have been reduced the last recommend amendment.
 Sections will be renumbered accordingly upon approval of Council to prepare an ordinance.

Legend: Current Code in black; language to be removed in ~~strike through~~

Previous to Committee in **RED**

Proposed in **BLUE**

ARTICLE II. MAYOR, ~~AND COUNCIL~~ AND CITY MANAGER

DIVISION 1. GENERALLY

Sec. 2-31. Salaries of mayor and councilmembers.

The salary of the mayor shall be ~~\$160,000.00 annually if there is a change in the form of government to mayor-council form effective July 1, 2014. If there is no change in the form of government the salary of the mayor shall be \$75,000.00 annually under the council-manager form of government effective July 1, 2014. If the City of Columbia form of government changes from the council manager to mayor council, the mayor shall derive no other income from outside employment.~~ Effective July 1, 2006, the salaries of the members of city council shall be \$13,350.00 annually.

State Law reference— Salaries of mayor and councilmembers determined by ordinance, S.C. Code 1976, § 5-7-170.

Clean will read:

Sec. 2-31. Salaries of mayor and councilmembers.

The salary of the mayor shall be \$75,000.00 annually under the council-manager form of government effective July 1, 2014. Effective July 1, 2006, the salaries of the members of city council shall be \$13,350.00 annually.

Combined 2-58 and 2-114

Sec. 2-33. ~~Sec. 2-58. Sec. 2-114. City manager.~~

(a) The city manager shall be the chief executive officer of the city and head of the administrative branch of city government. The city manager shall perform and exercise the duties and responsibilities prescribed by law for this office and such other duties and responsibilities as prescribed by the city council.

(b) The city manager may, within the financial limits imposed by the budget approved by city council, employ one or more assistants to exercise such supervisory responsibilities over departments as may be prescribed by the manager.

(c) In case of accidents or other circumstances creating an emergency, the city manager may, with the consent of the city council, award contracts and make purchases for the purpose of repairing damages caused by the accident or meeting the public emergency; but he shall file promptly with the city council a certificate showing the emergency and the necessity for the action, together with an itemized account of all expenditures.

(d) The city manager shall attend all meetings of the council unless excused by the council. He shall keep the council advised of the status of matters pending for council consideration, make recommendations and present ordinances and resolutions for council action, participate in discussion of any matter involving the welfare of the city, and present items on the council agenda.

(e) Assistants. ~~The city manager may employ assistants to exercise such supervisory responsibilities over departments as the city manager may delegate.~~ Council shall evaluate the performance of the city manager on an annual basis. The timely completion of the council's goals and work plan objectives shall be a primary measure used in the manager's evaluation.

Sections 2-58 and 2-114 have been combined to create the below Sec. 2-33:

Sec. 2-33. ~~Sec. 2-58. Sec. 2-114. City manager.~~

(a) The city manager shall be the chief executive officer of the city and head of the administrative branch of city government. The city manager shall perform and exercise the duties and responsibilities prescribed by law for this office and such other duties and responsibilities as prescribed by the city council.

CHAPTER 2 - ADMINISTRATION

Sections previously included for context but are not being amended have been removed.
 Sections which contained multiple versions have been reduced the last recommend amendment.
 Sections will be renumbered accordingly upon approval of Council to prepare an ordinance.

Legend: Current Code in black; language to be removed in ~~strike through~~

Previous to Committee in **RED**

Proposed in **BLUE**

~~(b) The city manager may, within the financial limits imposed by the budget approved by city council, employ one or more assistants to exercise such supervisory responsibilities over departments as may be prescribed by the manager.~~

~~(c) The city manager shall attend all meetings of the council unless excused by the council. He shall keep the council advised of the status of matters pending for council consideration, make recommendations and present ordinances and resolutions for council action, participate in discussion of any matter involving the welfare of the city, and present items on the council agenda.~~

~~(d) Council shall evaluate the performance of the city manager on an annual basis. The timely completion of the council's goals and work plan objectives shall be a measure used in the manager's evaluation.~~

State Law reference— Term of employment and compensation fixed by council, manager serves at pleasure of the council, provision for removal of manager, S.C. Code 1976, § 5-13-70; responsibilities of manager, S.C. Code 1976, § 5-13-90.

Sec. 2-34. Appointment; qualification; residency requirements: (MASC Version)

(a) The city manager shall be appointed by a majority vote of the council for an indefinite term. The manager shall be employed solely on the basis of his executive and administrative qualifications.

(b) The manager need not be a resident of the municipality or state at the time of appointment, but may reside outside the municipality while in office only with the approval of the council.

(c) No council member or mayor shall be employed as city manager during the term for which he or she shall have been elected.

State law reference: Employment and qualifications of manager, S.C. Code 1976, § 5-13-50.

State Law reference— Term of employment and compensation fixed by council, manager serves at pleasure of the council, provision for removal of manager, S.C. Code 1976, § 5-13-70; responsibilities of manager, S.C. Code 1976, § 5-13-90.

Combined 2-59 and 2-115

Sec. 2-34. ~~Sec. 2-59. Sec. 2-115.~~ City attorney.

~~The city attorney shall attend all meetings of the council unless excused by the council. He shall act as parliamentarian, prepare ordinances and resolutions, review all ordinances, resolutions and documents presented to the council, and give opinions upon questions of procedure, form and law to any member of the council and the city manager.~~

~~(a) Appointment. The city council shall appoint a city attorney and labor counsel, who shall serve at its pleasure.~~

~~(b) Duties. The city attorney shall be the chief legal counsel to the city, the mayor and members of the council and the city manager and to the officers and department heads of the city. The city attorney shall prosecute and defend the city in all actions and appear on behalf of the city and its officers in legal proceedings and at all times take appropriate actions to protect the interests of the City. The city attorney shall prepare or supervise the preparation of all legal documents and instruments of the city and shall approve all ordinances, resolutions, contracts and related documents as to form. The city attorney may employ assistant city attorneys and legal assistants as necessary for the performance of his duties, when such positions are provided for in the city budget. ~~When requested,~~ The city attorney shall attend meetings of the council, unless excused from attending by council, and serve as the parliamentarian at such meetings, render legal opinions, represent the city at meetings and conferences and perform such other duties as prescribed by law and by the city council.~~

(c) Council shall evaluate the performance of the city attorney on an annual basis.

State Law reference— Appointment of municipal attorney by city council, S.C. Code 1976, § 5-7-230.

CHAPTER 2 - ADMINISTRATION

Sections previously included for context but are not being amended have been removed.
 Sections which contained multiple versions have been reduced the last recommend amendment.
 Sections will be renumbered accordingly upon approval of Council to prepare an ordinance.

Legend: Current Code in black; language to be removed in ~~striketrough~~

Previous to Committee in **RED**

Proposed in **BLUE**

Combined 2-60 and 2-116

Sec. 2-35, ~~Sec. 2-60 Sec. 2-116.~~ City clerk.

~~The officer of the city designated by the city manager as city clerk shall give notices of council meetings, post the agenda, attend regular and special meetings, record votes of the council, keep minutes of council meetings and perform such other duties as may be assigned.~~

- (a) Appointment. The city manager shall appoint the city clerk, who shall serve at his pleasure.
- (b) Duties. The city clerk shall maintain a record of and be responsible for the preservation of minutes of all council meetings and all official maps and plats that are adopted; keep the corporate seal; attest signatures; file and record council actions; maintain election records; and perform such other duties as required by law or assigned by the city manager.

State Law reference— Appointment and duties of municipal clerk, S.C. Code 1976, § 5-7-220.

Sec. 2-36. Council interaction with employees.

Except for the purpose of inquiries and investigations, neither the council nor its members shall deal with municipal officers and employees who are subject to the direction and supervision of the manager except through the manager, and neither the council nor its members shall give orders to any such officer or employee, either publicly or privately.

State law reference - Councilmen prohibited from dealing with employees under control and supervision of manager. S.C. Code 1975 §5-13-40.

Sec. 2-37—2-50. Reserved.

Sec. 2-51. Meetings; Time and place of regular meetings; special meetings; meetings to be open to public.

(a) A meeting is the convening of a quorum of council, as defined by Sec. 2-53, to discuss or act upon a matter over which the city council has supervision, control, jurisdiction, or advisory power.

(b) To allow the vetting of complex issues, city council frequently schedules work sessions the day of regularly **or other** scheduled meetings. The time and location of work sessions are subject to meeting notice requirements and are posted on the city's web site. Work sessions are public meetings.

(c) ~~(a)~~ Regular meetings of the council shall be held at 6:00 p.m. at city hall on the first and third Tuesdays in each month unless changed by a majority vote of members present at any regular or special meeting.

(d) ~~(b)~~ Special meetings of the council may be held on the call of the mayor or of a majority of the members. Notice of a special meeting shall be given and posted 24 hours prior to the meeting to all available members, and the news media and the public by the city clerk.

(e) ~~(c)~~ All regular, and special **and emergency** meetings of the council shall be open to the public.

Sec. 2-52. ~~Conference~~ Executive sessions.

~~The city council may have executive sessions as permitted by the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act, S.C. Code 1976, § 30-3-10 et seq., at such times and in such places as may be deemed necessary and in the public interest by the council.~~

(a) By majority vote in a public meeting, council may hold an executive session as permitted by the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act, S.C. Code 1976, § 30-3-10 et seq., at such times and in such places as may be deemed necessary and in the public interest by the council.

(b) No vote or formal action shall be taken in executive session except to adjourn or to return to public session.

(c) No minutes shall be taken in executive session.

CHAPTER 2 - ADMINISTRATION

Sections previously included for context but are not being amended have been removed.
 Sections which contained multiple versions have been reduced the last recommend amendment.
 Sections will be renumbered accordingly upon approval of Council to prepare an ordinance.

Legend: Current Code in black; language to be removed in ~~striketrough~~

Previous to Committee in **RED**

Proposed in **BLUE**

(d) It shall be unlawful for a member of council or person in attendance to disclose to another person or make public the substance of a matter discussed in executive session.

State law reference – S.C. Code 1978, § 30-4-70

Sec. 2-53. Meeting agenda.

(a) An agenda shall be prepared for all council meetings by the ~~municipal~~ city clerk, under the direction of the city manager. All requests or matters for official action of the city council shall be submitted to the ~~municipal~~ city clerk no later than ten (10) business days preceding the council meeting.

(b) Any supporting materials necessary for review of items placed on the regularly scheduled meeting agenda for action be provided to City Councilmembers and to the public no later than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the City Council meeting.

(c) The final agenda for regularly scheduled meetings shall then be prepared and provided ~~electronically emailed,~~ mailed or ~~placed in the hands of~~ physically provided to the members of the city council a minimum of 24 hours in advance of the council meeting.

(d) The mayor or any member of council may request the city manager to place an item on a future agenda by making such a request at a council meeting. Unless a council member or the city manager objects, the requested item shall be included. If a council member or the city manager has an objection, the item in question shall not be included on a future agenda, unless a majority of the council votes in favor of including the item. ~~At the request of a member of the council, the city manager shall prepare a list setting forth items carried over from previous meetings in the preceding three months.~~

Additions to the agenda at a meeting should be reserved solely for situations requiring immediate action to address a critical and unanticipated situation by two-thirds vote of members present.

~~(e) The standard order of business at a ~~regular~~ council meeting, which shall be reflected in the meeting agenda, shall be as follows:~~

~~Roll Call~~

~~Pledge of Allegiance~~

~~Invocation~~

~~Public Input Related to Agenda Items~~

~~Approval of Minutes~~

~~Consent Agenda~~

~~— Consideration of Bids and Agreements~~

~~— Ordinance — Second Reading~~

~~— Event Resolutions~~

~~Presentations~~

~~Other Matters~~

~~Ordinance — First Reading~~

~~Resolutions~~

~~Appointments~~

~~City Council Committee Reports/Referrals~~

~~Appearance of the Public~~

Sec. 2-~~53~~54. Quorum and rules of order; ~~presiding officer.~~

A majority of the councilmembers serving shall constitute a quorum for the conduct of business at any meeting. The mayor or assistant mayor shall preside, except that, in the absence of both, the members present shall elect a presiding member. Except as otherwise required by state law or ordinance, all proceedings of the council shall be governed by Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised, and the city attorney shall act as parliamentarian.

CHAPTER 2 - ADMINISTRATION

Sections previously included for context but are not being amended have been removed.
 Sections which contained multiple versions have been reduced the last recommend amendment.
 Sections will be renumbered accordingly upon approval of Council to prepare an ordinance.

Legend: Current Code in black; language to be removed in ~~striketrough~~

Previous to Committee in **RED**

Proposed in **BLUE**

(a) Quorum. A majority of the council members serving shall constitute a quorum for the conduct of business at any meeting. Only council members who are physically present at the meeting shall be counted for purposes of a quorum.

(b) Except as otherwise required by state law or ordinance, all proceedings of city council shall be governed by Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised, and the city attorney shall act as parliamentarian.

(c) Presiding officer. The mayor or, in the mayor's absence, the mayor pro tempore, shall preside at any meeting as provided in section 2-51. In the event that the mayor or mayor pro tempore is not in attendance or is ineligible to preside at any meeting, the next most senior member shall preside over the meeting.

~~(d) No member of the council shall leave the council chamber during a meeting without the permission of the council.~~

~~(e) Points of order shall take precedent over all other business and shall be ruled on by the presiding officer without debate, subject to appeal to the council.~~

~~(f) If, in speaking or otherwise, a councilmember shall violate any rule of order, the presiding officer shall, and any other councilmember may, call such member to order.~~

~~(g) When two or more councilmembers shall attempt at the same time to speak, the presiding officer shall decide who is entitled to speak first.~~

Sec. 2-55. Debate Limitations.

~~No councilmember shall speak more than twice on the same subject or occupy more than five minutes in making any remarks or address unless further extension is granted a majority of city council.~~

Sent to Technology Committee

Sec. 2-5456. Voting requirements.

(a) All actions of the council shall be by majority vote of members present at a public meeting, including suspension of any rule of order, except as otherwise required by ordinance; provided that an ordinance amending the rules of order and procedure shall require a majority vote of the councilmembers serving.

(b) Every member of the council present shall vote on every question except when required to ~~refrain~~ abstain from voting by state law. All conflicts should be stated for the record and the member shall submit a completed Statement of Potential Conflict. Any member of council who declares a conflict and abstains from voting on any matter shall remain present in the room during discussions and voting.

(c) The vote on every question shall be by roll call and shall be recorded in the council minutes by the city clerk.

~~(d) No member of the council may leave the council chamber while in public session without permission of the presiding officer.~~

~~(e) Abstentions are not counted and have no effect on the result.~~

Sec. 2-54. - Voting requirements. (Current Code – To Be Revised – Legal)

(a) All actions of the council shall be by majority vote of members present at a public meeting, including suspension of any rule of order, except as otherwise required by ordinance; provided that an ordinance amending the rules of order and procedure shall require a majority vote of the councilmembers serving.

(b) Every member of the council present shall vote on every question except when required to ~~refrain~~ abstain from voting by state law. All conflicts should be stated for the record and the member shall submit a completed Statement of Potential Conflict. Any member of council who declares a conflict and abstains from voting on any matter shall remain present in the room during discussions and voting.

CHAPTER 2 - ADMINISTRATION

Sections previously included for context but are not being amended have been removed.
 Sections which contained multiple versions have been reduced the last recommend amendment.
 Sections will be renumbered accordingly upon approval of Council to prepare an ordinance.

Legend: Current Code in black; language to be removed in ~~strike through~~

Previous to Committee in **RED**

Proposed in **BLUE**

(c) ~~The vote on every question shall be by roll call and shall be recorded in the council minutes by the city clerk.~~

(d) ~~No member of the council may leave the council chamber while in public session without permission of the presiding officer.~~

~~(e) Abstentions are not counted and have no effect on the result.~~

Members of Council with a conflict of interest do not count toward the quorum, so they do not have to remain. Whether or not conflicted Council members remain in chambers is a Council policy decision.

Recommend specifying from whom a Council member obtains permission to leave chambers during public session in (d).

Sec. 2-5557. Minutes.

The city clerk shall keep the minutes of all public meetings of the council, which shall be a matter of permanent public record. ~~Whenever possible, At~~ each council meeting the minutes of the previous meeting shall be presented for approval. Minutes shall not be considered the official record of a meeting until approved by the council. Any member of the council desiring to express a position on a matter voted upon by the council in the minutes may do so by presenting the position in writing to the council not later than the next regular meeting.

Sec. 2-5658. Appearance of citizens.

Any person having a matter pertaining to the city, comments on an agenda item requiring a vote of city council, or its services shall be entitled to present the matter to the city council at any work session, regular, special called or emergency meeting by placing his or her name and purpose for speaking on an agenda list to be maintained by the city clerk prior to the commencement of the city council meeting. The city clerk shall make the agenda list available for public inspection. Except for comments on agenda items requiring a vote of city council, each person whose name appears on the agenda list may be allowed to speak at a time designated by the mayor during the city council meeting and may be limited to a three-minute presentation at the discretion of the mayor. For comments on agenda items requiring a vote of city council, each person shall be allowed to speak prior to the vote of city council on the agenda item. Personnel matters shall not be considered by the council at public meetings.

Recommend specifying who has the authority to limit public speaking to 3 minutes - a majority of council or mayor or presiding officer?

Sec. 2-6159. Council committees and special committees.

~~The council may appoint a special committee to assist in or hold a public hearing for the council at any time upon any matter pending before it. Minutes or reports of hearings held by special committees shall be filed with the city clerk as public records.~~

~~(a) City Council shall establish and use committees to expedite policy making and legislative functions by equally distributing the responsibilities and work load among members of council. By focusing on specialized policy areas, committee members develop subject matter expertise which aids the vetting of issues and formulation of policy recommendations for the full council's consideration and action. To ensure committees focus on policy decisions which effectively expedite council's prioritized goals, committee business should be limited to identified goals or to recommendations to amend the goals when necessary.~~

~~(b) Council committee assignments shall be made by the mayor biennially or immediately after any general election for the council choice of the council members beginning with the most senior member and concluding with the most junior member until each committee consists of three members of the council. The Budget and Finance Committee shall be a Committee of the Whole.~~

CHAPTER 2 - ADMINISTRATION

Sections previously included for context but are not being amended have been removed.
 Sections which contained multiple versions have been reduced the last recommend amendment.
 Sections will be renumbered accordingly upon approval of Council to prepare an ordinance.

Legend: Current Code in black; language to be removed in ~~strike through~~

Previous to Committee in **RED**

Proposed in **BLUE**

(c) ~~Council may appoint a special committee to advise and make recommendations to the City's management team, the Mayor, and City Council on a variety of programs and issues.~~

(d) ~~Minutes or reports of hearings held by special committees shall be filed with the city clerk as public records.~~

Sec. 2-61. Motions generally.

When a motion is made and seconded, it shall be stated by the presiding officer if verbal, and if in writing it shall be read by the city clerk. At the request of the presiding officer or any councilmember, any motion shall be put in writing.

Sec. 2-62. Annual goal setting.

City council shall annually schedule and conduct a process to identify and prioritize goals which shall be the basis for the annual work plan prepared by the city manager and the guide for the appropriation of discretionary spending during the annual budget process. ~~The timely completion of the work plan objectives shall be a primary measure used in the manager's evaluation.~~

DIVISION 3. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS

Sec. 2-81. Ordinances required.

- (a) The council shall act by ordinance in all matters required by law to be done by ordinance, including:
- (1) Adopt or amend an administrative code or code of ordinances, or create, alter or abolish any municipal department, office or agency;
 - (2) Provide for a fine or other penalty or establish a rule or regulation in which a fine or other penalty is imposed for violation;
 - (3) Appropriate funds and adopt ~~or amend~~ a budget;
 - (4) Grant, renew or extend franchises, licenses or rights in public streets or public property, and close abandoned streets;
 - (5) Authorize the borrowing of money or the issuance of bonds;
 - (6) Levy taxes, assess property for improvements or establish charges for services;
 - (7) Annex area to the city;
 - (8) Convey or lease or authorize the conveyance or lease of any lands of the city; and
 - (9) Amend or repeal any ordinance described in subsections (a)(1) through (8) of this section.

- (b) In all other matters the council may act either by ordinance or resolution, written or oral, recorded in the minutes.

State law reference – S.C. Code 1975, § 5-7-260

Sec. 2-85. Introduction of resolutions.

A voice motion of a member of the council ~~regarding an item on the agenda~~ shall be considered to be the introduction of an oral resolution, which shall require no written record other than a notation of the city clerk in the council minutes. A resolution proposed in writing shall be introduced in the same manner as an ordinance.

Sec. 2-86. Enactment of ordinances.

- (a) An ordinance to levy a tax, adopt a budget, ~~amend a budget~~, appropriate funds, or grant a franchise, license or right to occupy a public street or public property for commercial purposes shall be complete in the form in

CHAPTER 2 - ADMINISTRATION

Sections previously included for context but are not being amended have been removed.
 Sections which contained multiple versions have been reduced the last recommend amendment.
 Sections will be renumbered accordingly upon approval of Council to prepare an ordinance.

Legend: Current Code in black; language to be removed in ~~striketrough~~

Previous to Committee in **RED**

Proposed in **BLUE**

which it is finally passed, and in such form remain on file with the city clerk for public inspection at least one week before final adoption. Any other ordinance may be amended on final reading.

(b) No ordinance shall be adopted until it shall have been read two times and on two separate days with at least six days between each reading.

(c) Emergency ordinances may be adopted on one reading without notice or hearing by affirmative vote of two-thirds of the members present. An emergency ordinance may not levy taxes or relate to a franchise or a service rate, and shall expire automatically on the 61st day following enactment.

(d) The introduction and reading of any ordinance shall be by the reading of the title only unless full reading is requested by a member of the council.

(e) After the introduction of an ordinance, any member of the council or any citizen of the city interested therein may request a public hearing, which may be held at any time designated by the council prior to final adoption.

(f) Upon final adoption by vote of the council, an ordinance shall be signed by the mayor or presiding member and attested by the city clerk, who shall file the original in the council minutes and send a copy to the head of each department.

CHAPTER 2 - ADMINISTRATION

Sections previously included for context but are not being amended have been removed.
 Sections which contained multiple versions have been reduced the last recommend amendment.
 Sections will be renumbered accordingly upon approval of Council to prepare an ordinance.

Legend: Current Code in black; language to be removed in ~~strike through~~

Previous to Committee in **RED**

Proposed in **BLUE**

ARTICLE III. OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES

~~Sec. 2-127. Reserved. Sec. 2-128.~~ **Director of municipal court/administrative municipal court judge.**

The administrative municipal court judge is appointed by City Council, per sec. 13-2. The director of municipal court, subject to the city manager, shall have administrative supervision over the activities relating to municipal court administration, and city records management and shall perform such additional duties as may be assigned by the city manager. **Council may elect to have the administrative municipal court judge perform both functions, in which case the administrative municipal court judge shall also shall have administrative supervision over the activities relating to municipal court administration, and municipal court records management and shall perform such additional duties as may be assigned by the city manager.**

ARTICLE IV. DEPARTMENTS

(No proposed changes)

CHAPTER 2 - ADMINISTRATION

Sections previously included for context but are not being amended have been removed.
 Sections which contained multiple versions have been reduced the last recommend amendment.
 Sections will be renumbered accordingly upon approval of Council to prepare an ordinance.

Legend: Current Code in black; language to be removed in ~~striketrough~~
 Previous to Committee in **RED**

Proposed in **BLUE**

ARTICLE V. PROCUREMENT

Sec. 2-207. Award of contracts.

(a) The city manager may reject or approve bids and purchase agreements and award contracts in accordance with established procurement regulations, provided that contracts ~~involving~~ in excess of ~~\$49,999.99~~ up to and including \$50,000.00 shall be approved by the city council prior to award except that city council approval for bulk purchases of fuel in excess of ~~\$49,999.99~~ up to and including \$50,000.00 is not required, and the city manager is authorized to enter into agreements for the purchase of bulk fuel regardless of the amount.

(b) The city manager, at his discretion, may direct the senior assistant city manager or assistant city managers to reject or approve bids and purchase agreements and award contracts in accordance with regulations up to and including \$25,000.00.

(c) The city manager, at his discretion, may direct department heads to reject or approve bids and purchase agreements and award contracts in accordance with regulations up to and including \$5,000.00.

(d) In the event that the City is under a state of emergency as declared by the mayor, Governor of the State of South Carolina, or the President of the United States, the city manager may reject or approve bids and purchase agreements and award contracts for emergency goods, supplies, equipment and services in accordance with established procurement regulations, without city council approval, for the duration of the state of emergency. After the state of emergency is ended, city council shall ratify any contracts entered into by the city manager during the state of emergency when the contract amount exceeds \$50,000.00.



We Are Columbia

CITY OF COLUMBIA HONORARY STREET NAMING POLICY

Purpose

To provide for a process for the honorary naming of streets so that City Council may honor individuals and organizations who have made significant contributions to the Community.

Criteria for Designation

- Honorary street name designations shall be limited to individuals and organizations that have had a significant cultural, historical, or humanitarian impact on the City.
- The requested location for the honorary street designation must have a geographical relationship to the honoree i.e. honoree lived or worked at the location requested for recognition.
- Honorary designations shall be limited to one block in length.
- Signs shall be fabricated in a manner that clearly designates them as honorary through color and/or shape.
- There shall be only one honorary designation per location.
- Honorary designations shall be limited to one per Council member per year.

Process for Designation

Honorary street name designations shall be sponsored and approved by City Council through the following process:

- The sponsoring City Council member should make effort to discuss the intent of the Honorary Designation with other Council members in advance of requesting a Resolution be written.
- Upon request by the sponsoring City Council member, the City Attorney will prepare a Resolution for Council consideration and action and Public Works will manufacture and schedule installation of the signs. Actual installation will not occur until after the resolution is approved by City Council. A copy of the sign will also be provided to the individual being recognized by the Honorary Designation or family member who may represent the same.
- A copy of the Resolution shall be transmitted to Columbia-Richland 911 as well as the appropriate addressing staff at City of Columbia and Richland County to ensure all parties are aware of the Honorary Designation. However, the Honorary Designation does not have an impact on addressing, as the official road name does not change.